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          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. My name is Leroy Comrie, and I chair the

          4  Committee on Rules, Privileges and Elections.

          5  Present with us are Council Member Tony Avella, who

          6  is on time. Thank you very much, Council member.

          7  Council Member Yvette Clarke who is on time also.

          8  And Council Member Christine Quinn. Thank you very

          9  much for being on time.

         10                 As you know, there was a hearing

         11  previous to this one, so we're running a little

         12  late. I know that Council Member Katz and Council

         13  Member Provenzano will be with us shortly.

         14                 Today we have before us five

         15  candidates for our review for positions in three

         16  separate bodies.

         17                 They are Reverend Diane Lacey-Winley,

         18  a resident of Manhattan. She is a Council redesignee

         19  to the Health and Hospitals Corporation Board of

         20  Directors, whose term, if approved by the Mayor,

         21  would expire on March 20th, 2004; Dr. John Maese, a

         22  resident of Brooklyn, who is a Council designee to

         23  the Health and Hospitals Corporation's Board of

         24  Directors, replacing Dr. Theodore Strange, whose

         25  term, if approved by the Mayor, would expire March
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          2  20th, 2006.

          3                 Sibyl Silberstein. Did I say that

          4  properly?

          5                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: You did.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I got lucky.

          7                 A resident of Queens is the Council

          8  recommendation to the Youth Board serving an

          9  undefined term.

         10                 Morshed Alam, a Queens resident, is a

         11  Council appointment to the Voter Assistance

         12  Commission, replacing Eartha Thompson. His term will

         13  expire June 30th, 2004; and Alonzo deCastro, a Bronx

         14  resident, is a Council appointment to the Voter

         15  Assistance Commission, replacing Miss Willy Bowman.

         16  His term will expire June 30th, 2003.

         17                 At this time we'd like to start.

         18  We've been joined by Council Member Lew Fidler from

         19  Brooklyn, and we'd like to start with the Youth

         20  Board, Ms. Sibyl Silberstein.

         21                 The Youth Board serves as a forum to

         22  review the overall welfare to the City's youth. The

         23  Board consists of 28 members appointed by the Mayor,

         24  14 of who are appointed upon recommendation of the

         25  City Council.
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          2                 The Board must be representative of

          3  the community and includes persons representing the

          4  areas of social services, health care, education,

          5  business industry and labor.

          6                 The Board meets quarterly and members

          7  served without compensation.

          8                 Good afternoon, Mrs. Silberstein.

          9                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Good afternoon, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you raise

         12  your right hand and be sworn in, please?

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         14  swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to

         15  give us is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

         16  but the truth?

         17                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: I do.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         19  your name for the record.

         20                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Sibyl Silberstein.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Silberstein,

         23  do you have an opening statement or comment that

         24  you'd like to share with us?

         25                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: I didn't really
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          2  realize that I was supposed to prepare an opening

          3  statement. What I'd like to say is that for the bulk

          4  of my adult life I've been interested in youth, as

          5  evidenced by the fact that I was a teacher, I've

          6  been on a community board, I've been active in many

          7  activities in which young people are involved and I

          8  retired from teaching this past July and I would

          9  like to continue my activities involving youth.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         11                 MS 172 is in District 26?

         12                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Yes, it is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Where is that

         14  exactly?

         15                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: It's on 81st Avenue,

         16  between -- it's 257, between 81s and 82nd.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh. Alrighty, do

         18  we have any questions from the members for Ms.

         19  Silberstein?

         20                 Yes, Tony. Councilman Avella, I'm

         21  sorry.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: You can call

         23  me Tony.

         24                 Good afternoon.

         25                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Good afternoon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I see in the

          3  response to the questions we submitted, that your

          4  name was recommended by Council Member Helen Sears.

          5                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: And that bodes

          7  well for me, because, you know, Helen and I go way

          8  back, and you and I probably have met over the years

          9  and I recognized the face immediately.

         10                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Yes, we have.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: And going over

         12  your resume, I think you'd be a fine addition.

         13                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, and in the

         15  interest of just being nosey, for lack of a better

         16  word, I would like to just get some perspective from

         17  you on how you think you can be most helpful to the

         18  Youth Board.

         19                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: I think I can be

         20  helpful because I have a vast experience with young

         21  people of all ages, starting with elementary school

         22  and on through high school and even college, because

         23  I did some college teaching for a brief period of

         24  time.

         25                 I've also been involved peripherally
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          2  in fund acquiring, if you will, and working with the

          3  private sector to help to get funds, so I think in

          4  that way I might be able to help with the Youth

          5  Council.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. Well, I

          7  appreciate that. And especially in a diminished

          8  budget time, any private funding that we can find

          9  will always be helpful.

         10                 And your resume speaks for itself.

         11                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Being a public

         13  school principal almost automatically qualifies you

         14  for any position in the rest of the world, so it's

         15  an admirable trait that you have served our

         16  community in the education and now you're continuing

         17  to want to serve, even as a retired person.

         18                 So, Council Member Fidler, you have a

         19  question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, good

         21  morning. Good afternoon.

         22                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Good afternoon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Good

         24  afternoon.

         25                 I am the Chairman of the Youth
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          2  Services Committee, so I'm particularly interested

          3  in your appointment.

          4                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Oh, okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Your resume

          6  does appear to be quite wonderful.

          7                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I'm

          9  particularly pleased to understand that you've been

         10  involved in development of Holocaust curriculum.

         11                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Curricula.

         13                 We are probably, and I'm kind of

         14  guessing ahead without any specific knowledge,

         15  looking at a cut that is going to be addressed as

         16  Beacon Programs, have you had any direct involvement

         17  with any Beacons? And if so, if you have thought as

         18  to whether or not a cut that would take the

         19  preventive services component out of Beacon Programs

         20  makes any sense to you?

         21                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: To answer the first

         22  part of your question, my direct involvement with a

         23  Beacon Program is through my friend who is here with

         24  me who was a teacher in the Beacon Program, and we

         25  discussed the program on a regular basis. There was
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          2  a Beacon Program in the school in which I taught. So

          3  I know a little bit about the program.

          4                 In terms of cutting funds, I think it

          5  would be terrible. I think the kids who attend the

          6  Beacon Program, at least those with whom I was

          7  familiar, really got a lot out of it, there was a

          8  large attendance. The improvement in their scores

          9  indicated that they had gotten a lot out of the

         10  program. It would be a terrible thing if the program

         11  were cut.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         14  Helen Sears, your sponsor is here and she would like

         15  to say a few words at this time.

         16                 Welcome, Council Member Sears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 I appreciate your interviewing with

         20  Sibyl Silberstein. The words that I have to say

         21  about Sibyl would sound so flowery and so

         22  extravagant because of her knowledge, her

         23  sensitivity to the youth, her involvement over many,

         24  many years with community.

         25                 Her commitment to community, to
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          2  children, to our programs, to life in general has

          3  just exceeded what anyone would hope to find in a

          4  community person.

          5                 Her dedication has just extended

          6  above and beyond what her responsibilities have been

          7  in her professional life, in her private life, and

          8  she has been an enormous asset to the Borough of

          9  Queens, to the City of New York, and certainly to

         10  the community in which she serves.

         11                 She would be an excellent asset to

         12  the Youth Board, and I was so proud to place her

         13  name in nomination. And I thank you for your

         14  consideration.

         15                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you, Helen.

         16  That was lovely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         18  Melinda Katz.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hi, Ms.

         20  Silberstein. How are you?

         21                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Hi, Ms. Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just wanted to

         23  make a quick comment. I would be remiss if I didn't

         24  point out that Ms. Silberstein is a vice president

         25  of the Queens Council on the Arts, which is an
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          2  organization founded by my mother in 1969, it's a

          3  great organization and she's done a lot of great

          4  work for them. So, it not only is focusing on youth,

          5  but it's also focusing on the importance of cultural

          6  arts, especially in the outer boroughs, or the other

          7  boroughs, as I would like to say, and I think that

          8  that's -- once in awhile we go into the outer

          9  boroughs, Manhattan.

         10                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But I do thank

         12  her for her commitment to the cultural and the arts

         13  in the Borough of Queens, so thank you.

         14                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Silberstein,

         16  thank you very much for -- oh, I'm sorry, Council

         17  Member Clarke has a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Good

         19  afternoon, Ms. Silberstein.

         20                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Good afternoon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I wanted to

         22  just get a sense from you of what issues, what are

         23  the three major issues that you feel are challenging

         24  our youth today and how you feel the Youth Board

         25  could be instrumental in addressing them through
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          2  policy and advocacy?

          3                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: It's a tough

          4  question. Three major issues.

          5                 One issue that I think is very

          6  important is the fact that, especially with younger

          7  children there are many children whose parents are

          8  not home at 3:00 as they were when my children went

          9  to school, or when I went to school, and so we must

         10  be able to provide some kind of after school

         11  activity for them, whether it be academic or

         12  recreational. I think that's a very important thing,

         13  and that goes all the way through from elementary

         14  school, I would say, through the high schools, to

         15  provide some meaningful place for these students,

         16  either to get help or participation, some kind of

         17  recreational activity.

         18                 I think another problem facing the

         19  older young people is the lure of some of their

         20  peers to unattractive, things we would deem

         21  unattractive, and I think it's, again, up to the

         22  schools and up to things like the Youth Council, to

         23  provide alternative outlets for these young people.

         24                 I'm stumped on the third one.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Do you see a
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          2  role for the Youth Board in advocacy or in policy

          3  development that would address at least these two

          4  things that you've been able to identify?

          5                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Absolutely.

          6  Particularly in advocacy in trying to tap into the

          7  private sector to raise funds for these programs.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

          9                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Silberstein,

         11  there are no other questions, and your resume speaks

         12  well for you, and we really appreciate your desire

         13  to continue to serve our City in a volunteer

         14  capacity to enhance the opportunities for youth in

         15  the City. So, we will be voting at the end, but I

         16  can pretty much assure you that Helen Sears will not

         17  let us do anything but appoint you.

         18                 MS. SILBERSTEIN: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         21  coming.

         22                 At this time we're going   to do Dr.

         23  John Maese. Dr. Maese is going to be serving on the

         24  Health and Hospitals Corporation, which is a public

         25  benefit corporation charged with the duty of
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          2  providing high quality, dignified and comprehensive

          3  health care and treatment to the public, especially

          4  to those who cannot afford such services.

          5                 HHC's Board of Directors consists of

          6  16 members who administer HHC. Included within the

          7  Board's membership, in addition to the five

          8  ex-officio members, are ten appointees of the Mayor,

          9  five of whom are designated by the Council for

         10  consideration by the Mayor.

         11                 Term of office or directors is five

         12  years with the vacancy filled under the terms of the

         13  original appointment. Directors are not compensated

         14  but are reimbursed for actual expenses.

         15                 Welcome. Good afternoon, Dr. Maese.

         16  Could you raise your right hand and be sworn in,

         17  please?

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         19  swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to

         20  give is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         21  the truth?

         22                 DR. MAESE: Yes.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         24  your name for the record.

         25                 DR. MAESE: John R. Maese.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

          4  opening statement, Dr. Maese.

          5                 DR. MAESE: No, I don't.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          7                 Well, do we have any questions for

          8  Dr. Maese first?

          9                 Okay, Council Member Clarke.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Good

         11  afternoon, Dr. Maese.

         12                 I was looking over some of your

         13  responses to the questions raised by the Council,

         14  and I took note about the fact that Staten Island

         15  currently has no acute care facilities, HHC

         16  facilities, and you stressed that HHC must work with

         17  private hospitals to coordinate the delivery of

         18  quality health services, and that HHC should work

         19  with private hospitals to ensure that patients that

         20  have limited resources can receive quality health

         21  care in an emergency and guarantee that the standard

         22  care of our patients is the same in all hospitals

         23  regardless of ability to pay.

         24                 What I was wondering is, how would

         25  you propose to facilitate this relationship? And
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          2  probably from your background you've seen some

          3  models that could be helpful.

          4                 One of the concerns that we've had, I

          5  serve on the Health Committee, is the tension

          6  between the voluntary sector and the public sector

          7  in the sense that there's always a demand for

          8  insured patients, and how that demand drives where

          9  people receive health care; could you give me your

         10  thoughts on that?

         11                 DR. MAESE: Well, on Staten Island,

         12  since we don't have an acute care facility, both of

         13  the major hospitals have to provide care to the

         14  poor, so both of them have charitable programs in

         15  existence where they accept patients who cannot pay.

         16                 So, on Staten Island, economics is

         17  not one of the major criterias of acceptance of

         18  patients into that system.

         19                 I think in the City as a whole it

         20  really comes down to communication and getting the

         21  hospitals together so that there's appropriate

         22  resource utilization so that patients get the care

         23  that they need at the right place at the right time.

         24  So I think the first step would be communicating

         25  with the voluntary hospital.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          3  Quinn has some questions. We've been rejoined by

          4  Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          6                 You're on the staff at Staten Island

          7  University; is that correct? I mean you're a member

          8  of the staff there?

          9                 DR. MAESE: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And you have an

         11  involvement in their CHAPS program; is that correct?

         12                 DR. MAESE: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Now, there's

         14  been, as I understand it, some controversy around

         15  the CHAPS program? Could you comment on that. And

         16  about as it relates -- as I understand it, and this

         17  might not be completely correct, there is some

         18  controversy relating to what CHAPS had been

         19  over-reporting visits and things of that nature?

         20                 DR. MAESE: Well, CHAPS provides

         21  therapeutic services.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry, I'm

         23  having trouble hearing you. Can you speak a little

         24  closer to the mic?

         25                 DR. MAESE: CHAPS supplies
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          2  rehabilitative services to the mentally retarded and

          3  developmentally delayed community. My role at CHAPS

          4  is really Director of Performance Improvement and I

          5  was brought in to apply quality standards to that

          6  process.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, would it be

          8  fair to say then you were brought in because of the

          9  problems to try to fix them? Is that what you're

         10  indicating?

         11                 DR. MAESE: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. So, your

         13  tenure at CHAPS then is post the problems with

         14  reporting?

         15                 DR. MAESE: Correct. My function was

         16  to apply performance improvement and quality

         17  assurance standards in a medical model, and that has

         18  not always been applied in rehabilitative services.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let me ask

         20  another question.

         21                 On the question -- I chair the

         22  Council's Health Committee, so your answer to

         23  question three of the questions that the Council

         24  submitted is particularly important to me. Question

         25  three is; "What reporting relationship, if any, do
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          2  you expect to maintain with the City Council and its

          3  members?" And what I have is, you say "I do not

          4  believe there is any direct reporting relationship

          5  to the City Council on an individual basis unless

          6  specifically requested to appear before the Council.

          7  The Board of Directors issues reports from time to

          8  time..." et cetera, et cetera.

          9                 My perspective on the Council's

         10  delegation to the HHC Board, and this may or may not

         11  have been made clear to you when the delegation,

         12  Staten Island Delegation reached out to you is, I

         13  would like the Council's Delegation to really work

         14  as a team, and, you know, we're coming close to

         15  being five for five, so we can really start to do

         16  that, and I would, once we're maybe at four or five

         17  even, would like to have our appointees meet as

         18  close to once a month with myself and other

         19  interested Council and Committee members. I would

         20  like us to have an agenda. The Health Committee has

         21  a long-term agenda, I'd like our Board of Directors

         22  to have an agenda of things we are going to try to

         23  move on the HHC Board that are perhaps supportive of

         24  our legislative agenda or beyond our legislative

         25  ability given the structure.
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          2                 So, how, given your answer to that

          3  question would you feel about the additional

          4  responsibility of, you know, monthly-ish meetings,

          5  because they may not happen literally every month,

          6  but really be part of a team with the Council where

          7  you would be working with the other four in such a

          8  manner, and it would have additional, not you'd have

          9  to send us a report, but coordinated response,

         10  coordination responsibilities?

         11                 DR. MAESE: Well, as I said in the

         12  rest of my answer, that the City Council is the

         13  voice of the people and expresses their health care

         14  needs. So, I think communication is very important.

         15  So, that kind of communication would be welcomed and

         16  appropriate.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great.

         18                 DR. MAESE: The way I answered the

         19  question really was based on what appeared to be the

         20  reporting structure as identified.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. So, you

         22  were doing more what your legal-type reporting --

         23                 DR. MAESE: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, okay. I

         25  understand that. Okay. All right. Thank you.

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          3  Fidler.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Good

          5  afternoon, Doctor.

          6                 Do you have a view on privatization

          7  of hospital system?

          8                 DR. MAESE: Privatization of HHC?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

         10                 DR. MAESE: I think that that would

         11  require a tremendous amount of research, and at this

         12  time I'm not prepared to answer that question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I mean, it's a

         14  reasonably public issue. It was rather widely

         15  debated. You don't have an inclination one way or

         16  another as to whether or not New York City hospitals

         17  ought to be privatized?

         18                 DR. MAESE: I think that privatization

         19  has advantages and disadvantages, and I think that

         20  they need to be explored. But at the present time I

         21  would say that I don't have a strong opinion one way

         22  or the other on that issue.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And you are

         24  being put forward as the Staten Island

         25  representative; is that correct?
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          2                 DR. MAESE: Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And do you

          4  know who put your name forward?

          5                 DR. MAESE: Mr. Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

          8  by Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx,

          9  and Council Member David Weprin from Queens.

         10                 Good afternoon.

         11                 The question that I had -- Oh, I'm

         12  sorry, Council Member Katz. Go ahead.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, don't worry

         14  about it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. I had a

         16  question regarding the fact that you were working

         17  for GHI and other insurance companies and did you

         18  feel that there would be any conflicts to this with

         19  your serving on the HHC Board?

         20                 DR. MAESE: No, I don't think there's

         21  any conflict at all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. And then

         23  you also, you also answered question number eight

         24  regarding the steps that the Board should be taking,

         25  if any, to deal with revenue loss that has resulted
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          2  from the steering of emergency patients to private

          3  hospitals. And you stated that you didn't think it

          4  was revenue but patient care, and the ambulance

          5  should not be allowed to steer hospitals --

          6  ambulances should not be allowed to steer patients

          7  to different hospitals based on the patient's

          8  ability to pay.

          9                 What are the steps that you think, or

         10  what are the burdens that you think are on the EMS

         11  people on how to implement that and to ensure that

         12  steering does not happen?

         13                 DR. MAESE: Well, what you would have

         14  to look at is you would have to look at the

         15  Ambulance Call Record, the ACR. And based on what

         16  the Ambulance Call Record states, it usually states

         17  the acuity of the patient condition at the time that

         18  the EMS arrives at the scene.

         19                 By looking at that, it would be

         20  appropriate to see where patients are going based on

         21  their need.

         22                 I mean, you know, patients should go

         23  to the hospital that can best serve their need. So,

         24  a very complicated patient, let's say that it's very

         25  well known at one facility, but a facility that's
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          2  closer by, it may be appropriate to route that

          3  patient to that facility. But in most times the

          4  patient should be sent to the closest available

          5  hospital.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What do you think

          7  the training of the EMS officer should be? Do you

          8  think they need consistent regulation?

          9                 I'm asking that because as you know

         10  the Mayor was talking about eliminating some EMS

         11  routes, giving them over to private companies.

         12                 DR. MAESE: Well, I think in my

         13  experience EMS functions very well in a very

         14  difficult situation. You have to go on an ambulance

         15  call to really appreciate how difficult that job is.

         16  And I would say that 99.9 percent of the time the

         17  patients arrive at the right place.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         19  Katz has a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No? Oh.

         22                 Council Member Quinn and then Council

         23  Member Clarke.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Two questions,

         25  actually.
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          2                 One is a follow-up to Council Member

          3  Fidler's question. It appears you were practicing

          4  medicine during the Giuliani Administration when the

          5  whole issue of privatizing the hospitals was very

          6  much in the press.

          7                 DR. MAESE: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, during that

          9  period of time you never formed an opinion on

         10  whether or not the hospital should be privatized?

         11                 I just find that curious.

         12                 DR. MAESE: Well, in Staten Island we

         13  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry,

         15  what?

         16                 DR. MAESE: In Staten Island it's a

         17  private system, and the private system in Staten

         18  Island works, in terms of supplying the health care

         19  needs of the underserved.

         20                 I'm not sure the same system would

         21  work in Brooklyn. I think each community has their

         22  own unique need, and that's why it has to be looked

         23  at community-by-community.

         24                 I trained at Kings County, and that

         25  community has different needs.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, does that

          3  mean then you would oppose privatizing hospitals

          4  that already exist, that communities depend on?

          5                 DR. MAESE: I think that it has to be

          6  thoroughly researched and the advantages and

          7  disadvantages need to be looked at.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just back to

          9  the CHAP thing for a second. So, you started there

         10  in '99?

         11                 DR. MAESE: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But as I

         13  understand it, the State has said that CHAPS

         14  continues to overreport visits in the present? I

         15  guess I want to follow up on that because you had

         16  said you were brought there to fix that problem. So,

         17  is it your sense that the problems still exist?

         18                 DR. MAESE: I think the problem has

         19  been corrected, and it's an ongoing correction.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So how would

         21  that relate then to the state citing these

         22  deficiencies and in the recent, you know, very

         23  recent past?

         24                 DR. MAESE: I'm not sure what data

         25  that they're looking at.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And then is it

          3  true that there is presently another member of the

          4  HHC Board who also works at CHAPS; is that correct?

          5  A mayoral appointee?

          6                 DR. MAESE: Not that I'm aware of.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Not that you're

          8  aware of. Okay, thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         10  Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you. I

         12  chair the Committee on Fire, and under Fire comes

         13  EMS, and I just wanted to press you a little bit

         14  more on your response to the question around the EMS

         15  service and what you feel is appropriate in terms of

         16  patient delivery.

         17                 Because I guess it would be important

         18  as a Board member to be very forthright in any

         19  policy that you, you know, that you want to advocate

         20  for on the Board. And your response sort of was

         21  optional.

         22                 Can you sort of elaborate a little

         23  bit more? You're talking about specialties in health

         24  care, and there's been certainly an observation that

         25  at least with the non-EMS, or non-FDNY ambulances,
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          2  there's a certain amount of steering that does take

          3  place. And I guess the concern of many New Yorkers

          4  is that they'd be able to receive care as soon as

          5  possible and preferably in a closer proximity than

          6  being taken beyond an HHC facility, and if, in fact,

          7  that were the case, what does that actually mean to

          8  our public health care system when ambulances then

          9  have the discretion about where and when to take

         10  patients to certain facilities.

         11                 DR. MAESE: Let me clarify my answer.

         12                 I think that the patient should be

         13  taken to the closest hospital that can provide the

         14  best care for that patient.

         15                 So, for instance, there are a certain

         16  number of trauma centers within the City, so if the

         17  patient was a victim of trauma, that patient would

         18  be best served by going to the closest trauma

         19  center, which may not be the closest hospital. So,

         20  in situations like that where a particular service

         21  is of value to the patient, then I think that in

         22  that case, the ambulance could bypass the closest

         23  hospital to go to the hospital that best serves the

         24  needs of that particular patient.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member
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          2  Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hello, Doctor.

          4  Thank you for being here.

          5                 In your answers to your questions --

          6  I will just give you a background. I was the Chair

          7  of the Subcommittee of Urban Health in the New York

          8  State Legislature in the Assembly, and part of our

          9  mandate was about privatization of the hospitals,

         10  and we did an outright on the privatization of the

         11  HHC hospitals, and we were happy enough to win that

         12  war after a year or two.

         13                 So, I guess I'm concerned about your

         14  answers on privatization, and I was looking at the

         15  answers to your questions, and in several places,

         16  which I think is very admirable, you talk about

         17  providing comprehensive quality health care to all

         18  New Yorkers regardless of their ability to pay. And

         19  also the decreased budget will result in cuts to

         20  services. The challenge will be to deliver the same

         21  quality of care to more individuals for less cost,

         22  and so on and so forth. And I think that those are

         23  good qualities for someone that we want to appoint

         24  to the HHC.

         25                 But I guess I'm wondering, if you
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          2  haven't formed an opinion on privatization, how were

          3  you planning, or what ideas do you have to bring to

          4  the table in order to deliver those services without

          5  privatization?

          6                 DR. MAESE: Well, I think that there

          7  are several options to that.

          8                 One option would be to use retired

          9  physicians who are leaving practice at a younger

         10  age, and maybe in exchange for some tort reform

         11  relief, they might be willing to supply services

         12  free of charge.

         13                 I think there are demand management

         14  systems that can be used, where patients could be

         15  triaged appropriately to enter the health care

         16  system.

         17                 And, finally, I think you can use

         18  technologies to enable patients to do some of their

         19  own self-care.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Self-care? Like

         21  you mean try to train people to take care of

         22  themselves?

         23                 DR. MAESE: When I mean self-care,

         24  appropriate information, like a diet, for instance,

         25  or things to watch out for. Let's say you have a
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          2  diabetic and their leg was red, you would train

          3  them, if you see redness, come to the hospital. So,

          4  trying to make sure patients come to the health care

          5  system when appropriate.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I could ask more

          7  questions, but just for the record, I have the

          8  utmost respect, and many of my colleagues do for

          9  Councilman Oddo, but I will say that the views on

         10  privatization I believe is something we really

         11  probably should have known today, so you might want

         12  to really consider that and think about what your

         13  views are and I'd be interested to know in the

         14  future.

         15                 But thank you for being here today.

         16                 DR. MAESE: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Any other

         18  questions for Dr. Maese?

         19                 We've been joined by Deputy Majority

         20  Leader Bill Perkins.

         21                 Good afternoon, sir.

         22                 Being that there are no other

         23  questions, Mr. Maese, we'll ask you to -- Dr. Maese,

         24  excuse me, we'll be voting shortly. Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 DR. MAESE: Thank you.

          3                 At this time we'd like to call on

          4  Reverend Diane Lacey-Winley, who will also be

          5  serving on the Health and Hospital Corporation, and

          6  as a redesignee.

          7                 I kind of hate to ask a Reverend to

          8  raise their right hand and be sworn in, but it's

          9  kind of the policy and procedure around here.

         10                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: My great

         11  pleasure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         14  swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to

         15  give us is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

         16  but the truth?

         17                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: I do.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Can you please

         19  state your name for the record?

         20                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: My name is

         21  Diane Lacey-Winley. Is that too loud?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No.

         23                 Do you have an opening statement,

         24  Reverend Winley?

         25                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: I just want to
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          2  say that the concern for poor people and for all New

          3  Yorkers to be able to have access to quality health

          4  care, affordable health care, has been my passion

          5  for more than 20 years. This is what brings me back

          6  again. This is what has attracted me to the Health

          7  and Hospitals Corporation, because in its mission

          8  statement, it is committed to providing care for all

          9  people, regardless of their ability to pay.

         10                 And, so, in my long years on the

         11  Board, I have seen many detractors, many critics,

         12  come, but when they leave the Corporation, they

         13  leave committed to the structure and to the mission,

         14  to the goals and to the objectives.

         15                 So, I am proud to be asked to

         16  consider and for you to consider me as a candidate

         17  for reappointment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you, Dr.

         19  Lacey.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Can I make a

         21  comment?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Questions,

         23  comments?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Obviously Council
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          2  Member Perkins has a question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, is it

          4  appropriate for me to make comments now?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 I just want to, I don't know if I

          9  should recuse myself, I have no investment

         10  so-to-speak in a monetary way with regard to this

         11  particular candidate, but I want you to know that

         12  this candidate is perhaps, second to my mother, the

         13  one most responsible for who I am, in terms of my

         14  political point of view and in terms of my political

         15  career, someone who has done extraordinary amounts

         16  of service for this City as a past member of the

         17  Health and Hospitals Corporation Board, and who when

         18  we approached her to once again come back after

         19  having served so many years, she enthusiastically

         20  decided to do so, even though at one point she

         21  thought it would be time for her to move on.

         22                 But recognizing the challenges that

         23  the City is in, in terms of its fiscal crisis and

         24  other health needs, she realized that duty called,

         25  and so I just wanted to make sure for the record

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  that I had the opportunity to applaud her and to

          3  commend her and to encourage you all to join us in

          4  supporting her nomination.

          5                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman,

          6  for your patience.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm glad to hear

          8  that you're supporting your -- I'm just curious to

          9  know if she wants to take credit for your

         10  development.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I said I'm

         13  curious to know whether she wants to take credit for

         14  your development.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I gave her

         16  credit.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh, you gave her

         18  credit.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, but giving

         21  and taking is two different things.

         22                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Mr. Chairman?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

         24                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Am I still

         25  sworn?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

          3                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Being sworn I

          4  have to say yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, your record

          6  and your commitment to HHC over the years has been

          7  excellent. You shared a lot of information on the

          8  questionnaire, you've answered it more completely

          9  and thoroughly than any candidate that appeared

         10  before the Committee so far.

         11                 Your attendance record for HHC and

         12  your dedication to public health is unparalleled,

         13  and I feel that we're honored that you are

         14  continuing to serve in that capacity. And I

         15  appreciate you coming down this afternoon and

         16  presenting yourself to us, and even though Mr.

         17  Perkins is taking credit for you, I think the whole

         18  City is in your debt for your desire to serve and

         19  continue to serve on HHC.

         20                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         22  Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: After that

         24  speech from Leroy and Bill, it's hard to ask,

         25  especially since I guess it would be considered such
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          2  an indelicate question. In this day and age, I have

          3  to admit I am puzzled, why would you decline to

          4  state your age when asked?

          5                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: There's so

          6  much discrimination.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, there

          8  shouldn't be discrimination.

          9                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: There's so

         10  much discrimination based on age, and it's been an

         11  issue I've fought for a number of years, and I want

         12  to be considered based on my abilities, my

         13  commitment, my track record, and I'd like my age not

         14  to be an issue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Given your

         16  excellent resume and history and the laudatory words

         17  that we've heard, I would think that you would state

         18  your age with pride and conviction. If that's an

         19  issue for you, I mean I don't --

         20                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: I choose not

         21  to.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I understand.

         23                 You know, I hesitated to ask it, but

         24  I really do think that in this particular year, and

         25  place and time that we are, that that should be a
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          2  question that one should be able to answer without

          3  any concern. And that's why I raised -- you know,

          4  it's at the front of your resume, I said what is

          5  this. You know, it's part of our brochure, you know,

          6  she wouldn't tell us her age and she wouldn't

          7  corroborate it, the first instance is what's she

          8  hiding, you know, and then of course you continue to

          9  read and there doesn't seem to be anything for you

         10  to hide. And, so, that's the only reason why I asked

         11  the question --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: It's a point of

         13  personal privilege.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I understand

         15  that, but, you know, I'm not going to press it, I

         16  just think maybe you have it backwards, and if you

         17  think that's an issue, I think you should say it and

         18  not be concerned about it.

         19                 I don't think there's anyone in this

         20  body that has ever been accused of ageism, and I

         21  just, you know, it tends to raise more questions

         22  then anything else.

         23                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Thank you for

         24  your advice.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I would always
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          2  let a lady defer to whether or not she would indulge

          3  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Now, that's

          5  quite sexism, Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          7  Clarke.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair. And thank you, Reverend Winley.

         10                 There are a couple of issues that I

         11  wanted to just get your thoughts on. I noticed in

         12  reading over the materials that were presented to us

         13  that there were a number of instances where you

         14  would have had to abstain from voting, and one of

         15  those instances was the privatization of Coney

         16  Island Hospital, and I was wondering if you could

         17  give us a sense of why that was the case?

         18                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: I can't

         19  imagine that I've done that. I'm pretty much on the

         20  record and have been one of the members of the Board

         21  at that time most actively in favor, or actively

         22  against the privatization of Coney Island Hospital.

         23  In fact, I was one of three Board members, three or

         24  four Board members that went to Court to oppose it,

         25  and stood with the City Council President and City
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          2  Council members against the privatization. So, I

          3  think that must be an error.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: An error?

          5                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

          7                 There are two issues that have really

          8  -- well, there are numerous issues that are really

          9  a challenge for communities of color, and I wanted

         10  to raise this issue with you because I think that

         11  HHC and the Board, and just our approach to public

         12  health on the whole is going to be facing some

         13  really challenging times, particularly given our

         14  fiscal constraints. The whole, our ability to

         15  prioritize focused on particular issues with respect

         16  to health indicators, has been a challenge that I

         17  think we face and have done a poor job with.

         18                 I'm speaking with reference to

         19  HIV/AIDS and infant mortality, which is alarming

         20  rates in communities of color around the City, yet

         21  right now in terms of our public health agenda,

         22  we're dealing with a smoking ban, not to say that

         23  smoking isn't a major health care issue, it's just

         24  the challenge that we face in dealing with public

         25  health, and what gets attention, versus what
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          2  doesn't.

          3                 As a member of the Board, what role

          4  do you see yourself playing in bringing forth some

          5  of these health care disparities and poor health

          6  indicators in communities of color so that they can

          7  sort of receive some of the attention that some of

          8  the other health interests in the City of New York

          9  currently receives.

         10                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: I'm glad you

         11  raised that question, and it is an interest and a

         12  concern of mine to do that.

         13                 Up until quite recently, my Committee

         14  assignments, and this is largely where the issues

         15  and the priorities around specific health care needs

         16  get raised.

         17                 Up until recently I have not been

         18  assigned to a Committee that has this kind of

         19  mandate.

         20                 I am interested in serving on the

         21  Medical and Professional Affairs Committee, and have

         22  been told that there's a possibility I could be

         23  appointed to that Committee, and that certainly

         24  would be where I would voice those issues, and be

         25  able to follow through the Board and through
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          2  contacts directly with corporate leaders.

          3                 Also, working closely with community

          4  advisory board members who are the people who keep

          5  pressing us on these issues, and with other

          6  advocates.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          8  Quinn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just kind of

         10  wanted to add to the enthusiastic comments that some

         11  of the Committee members made and thank you for the

         12  work you've done during some of the most treacherous

         13  times for HHC as a Board member from Manhattan

         14  Delegation and say that I'm very excited about

         15  hopefully being part of the Council's reappointment

         16  of you, and look forward to being able to work with

         17  you more closely in my role as Health Committee

         18  Chair, because I think you've done really terrific

         19  work and I know that will only continue.

         20                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: Thank you. And

         21  may I say to you, Chairperson, that I am very

         22  interested in us being able to structure those

         23  regular meetings where we can share our mutual

         24  concerns. Because up to now we have I think

         25  conferred mostly on an as-needed basis, rather than
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          2  having the kind of on-going communication, that's

          3  helpful not only for you but for those of us who are

          4  Councilmanic designees. We are five members out of a

          5  16-person board, and until quite recently, or let me

          6  say for most of my tenure, to say we are minority

          7  members is an understatement.

          8                 We have not felt, most of us, that

          9  our voices have had the weight of others. We have

         10  felt that when we have criticized policies that this

         11  has been taken as a criticism of, direct criticism

         12  of the Mayor, and so we need your support and we

         13  want it to be reciprocal.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. Yes,

         15  absolutely. I think we feel very much the same way.

         16                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: It's lonely

         17  there.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         20  Reverend Lacey-Winley for your time and your

         21  continuing desire to serve our City.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 REVEREND LACEY-WINLEY: And before I

         24  leave, may I introduce to you my distinguished

         25  husband, who supports me, as well as the Commission
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          2  on the Public Health, one of the outstanding

          3  advocacy, health advocacy groups in our City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, thank you,

          5  Mr. Winley for letting -- oh, Reverend Winley, also,

          6  okay -- for letting us, or loaning us your wife to

          7  public service.

          8                 REVEREND WINLEY: We're glad to be of

          9  service.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. Thank

         11  you for coming.

         12                 At this time we'd like to call Mr.

         13  Alonzo deCastro, a Bronx resident who's going to the

         14  Voter Assistance Commission, which is charged with

         15  the duty of advising all appropriate officials on

         16  matters concerning voter registration and

         17  participation.

         18                 In addition to seven ex-officio

         19  members, there are nine other members, three

         20  appointed by the Mayor and six by the Council.

         21                 The Commissioner appoints a

         22  coordinator of voter assistance and together they

         23  monitor voter turnout and registration and

         24  coordinate efforts of both City agencies and the

         25  private sector in increasing voter registration and
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          2  voting.

          3                 City agencies are required to

          4  cooperate fully with the Commission's efforts to

          5  increase voter registration and turnout. Local Law

          6  29 of 2000 required that many City agencies

          7  distribute voter registration forms to the public,

          8  during their course of their normal business

          9  operations, and provide assistance in completing

         10  such forms where requested.

         11                 Good afternoon, Mr. DeCastro. Can you

         12  raise your right hand and be sworn in, please?

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         14  swear or affirm the testimony you're about to give

         15  us is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         16  truth?

         17                 MR. DeCASTRO: I do.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         19  your name for the record.

         20                 MR. DeCASTRO: My name is Alonzo I.

         21  DeCastro.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         24  opening statement, Mr. DeCastro?

         25                 MR. DeCASTRO: Yes. I would like to
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          2  say a few things.

          3                 I'm a naturalized citizen of this

          4  great country, and I've been voting since 1948, and

          5  I believe in the process of voter registration,

          6  voter education and the right of all people to vote

          7  in this country.

          8                 However, in the last several years,

          9  many people are not voting for whatever reasons.

         10  They really haven't done what they're supposed to be

         11  doing as far as voter registration and voter

         12  education is concerned.

         13                 Many people have been turned off by

         14  elections in the past few years, and I think it's

         15  important that we try to get people back in the

         16  voting booth, because it's important for the

         17  continuity of this country.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         19  your comments. Do we have any questions from any

         20  members at this time?

         21                 Council Member Clarke.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Chair.

         24                 Good afternoon.

         25                 MR. DeCASTRO: Good afternoon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Mr. DeCastro.

          3                 MR. DeCASTRO: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: The Voter

          5  Assistance Commission is a very crucial commission

          6  to the City of New York. With a growing immigrant

          7  population, with so many within our communities who

          8  have yet to exercise their franchise, we see this

          9  Commission as being very important.

         10                 Unfortunately, its history with

         11  respect to its strength for action and for

         12  creativity in reaching out and really fulfilling its

         13  mandate has yet to be manifested.

         14                 I was wondering whether you've given

         15  any thought to some strategies of how we can get the

         16  public to utilize, or get the Commissioners more

         17  actively engaged in working with community, to

         18  really press on its mandate.

         19                 MR. DeCASTRO: Well, in my responses I

         20  mentioned the fact that to the best of my knowledge

         21  very few people know that this Commission exists in

         22  the City of New York, and for that reason I think

         23  the Commission is handicapped because they're really

         24  not reaching out to the communities.

         25                 I have lived in the Bronx for 37
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          2  years about, and I think I've only heard about the

          3  Commission once.

          4                 Now, I have appeared before the

          5  Commission previously, and this was about, I think

          6  it was after the 1990 elections, and after that I

          7  never heard about it anymore. And I think it's

          8  important that we reach out to those communities.

          9                 As I mentioned in my responses, the

         10  things that I see the Commission needs to do is to

         11  examine the returns of the last election and

         12  identify those communities where the people are not

         13  really coming out to vote. It's a disgrace that in

         14  this day and age that less than 50 percent of an ED

         15  comes out to vote in the election, sometimes it's

         16  less than 30 percent. Therefore, I think we are

         17  failing in many respects that we are not reaching

         18  the people who should come out to vote.

         19                 I recently looked over the polling

         20  sites in my community in the 83rd Assembly District,

         21  and I noticed the distance that many people have to

         22  travel to vote, and it's a disgrace that needs to be

         23  adjusted and needs to be examined, and something

         24  needs to be done about it.

         25                 So, I think that is a first step that
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          2  needs to be done. We need to examine the poll sites,

          3  how the distance is involved. We need to have more

          4  poll sites that are available to people that don't

          5  have to travel long distances, and I think that's

          6  critical in the area of voter development.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

          8                 MR. DeCASTRO: You're welcome.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any other

         10  questions for Mr. DeCASTRO: Okay, seeing none, I

         11  want to thank you for your desire, and on the Voter

         12  Assistance Commission it is a unique opportunity in

         13  a difficult time with limited resources, so I really

         14  appreciate you wanting to try and come in and

         15  re-empower the Commission to what it should be and

         16  could be. Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. DeCASTRO: Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: At this time

         19  we're saving the best for last, we're going to call

         20  Mr. Morshed Alam just coming to serve for the first

         21  time on the Voter Assistance Commission. And my

         22  counsel, where did my counsel go?

         23                 Okay, Council Member Fidler is a

         24  lawyer, so he could swear you in.

         25                 Do you mind raising your right hand
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          2  and be sworn in by Council Member Fidler?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Do you

          4  solemnly swear to tell the truth?

          5                 MR. ALAM: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: He's sworn.

          7  I'll send you my bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you state

          9  your name for the record?

         10                 MR. ALAM: Morshed Alam.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And do you have

         12  an opening statement?

         13                 MR. ALAM: In 1998, actually me and my

         14  wife, we did about 1,200 voter registration in

         15  Queens, and I'm a naturalized citizen, and since

         16  1989 I have start voting and I understand

         17  importance, how important it is to be a registered

         18  voter, and, you know, if I can get a chance, if you

         19  give me a chance to appoint to Commission, I'll do

         20  my best to encourage people, to inspire people to

         21  come and vote as well as voter registration.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         24  Weprin.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Yes, I'd just
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          2  like to disclose that the applicant is a

          3  long-standing friend for a number of years, and his

          4  daughter Nusrad is on my staff in my district

          5  office. But I don't feel, now that I've disclosed

          6  that, I don't feel a need to abstain because he is

          7  by far an outstanding candidate, has been involved

          8  on Community Planning Board 29, I mean on School

          9  Board 29. As Vice Chairman he just recently stepped

         10  down as Vice Chairman of School Board 29 and I know

         11  has more time to devote, and he's been very active

         12  with the Queens Democratic organization in reaching

         13  out to the new immigrant community throughout Queens

         14  County and has been very active in recruiting new

         15  registrants to vote, and involving various immigrant

         16  communities in the political process, and I think he

         17  will make an outstanding member.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I also want to do

         19  my disclaimer because Mr. Alam and I served on

         20  Community School Board 29 together and I had the

         21  privilege of knowing him for about ten years now,

         22  and I have to say that there's no one more dedicated

         23  to empowering his community than Mr. Alam. He's been

         24  a trail-blazer in many ways. He's done amazing

         25  things in a short period of time to empower his
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          2  community to the effect that we had the first

          3  Bangladesh district leader in the state now that's

          4  in Queens and it's due largely to Mr. Alam's desire

          5  to empower his Asian community. He's developed a new

          6  Asians American -- I forget the name of it.

          7                 MR. ALAM: New Americans Democratic

          8  Club. He ran for public office, he is working

          9  diligently with every community, every new minority,

         10  new emerging minority community within Queens to

         11  empower and inform them and this serving on the

         12  Voter Assistance Commission will only enhance his

         13  ability and his resume to do outreach to the public.

         14                 It's important that in an

         15  ever-changing city and ever-diverse city, one of the

         16  most diverse cities in the world, that we accept and

         17  embrace and assist all new emerging cultures that

         18  are coming here to earn their rightful place as

         19  taxpayer citizens, voters, and full, to get full

         20  advantage of the total franchise of what it is to

         21  live in America.

         22                 So, with that being said, I want to

         23  welcome you to the Voter Assistance Commission, and

         24  Councilman Avella.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Did we vote
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          2  on this yet?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No, we didn't

          4  vote yet.

          5                 Councilman Avella.

          6                 Councilman Fidler is looking at me,

          7  and I think Councilman Perkins had a question.

          8                 I'll start with Councilman Avella.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Again, it

         10  would also be remiss of me, if not to add to my

         11  colleagues.

         12                 Mr. Alam and I have gone back a good

         13  number of years working in a community, and it is my

         14  privilege here to be able to vote later on for his

         15  appointment.

         16                 I think he will do a tremendous job.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         18  Fidler.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Only because

         20  Councilwoman Provenzano made me.

         21                 In which district were you running

         22  for the City Council until June of 2001? Which one

         23  of my colleagues had the privilege?

         24                 MR. ALAM: Twenty-four.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And who is 24?

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 MR. ALAM: Jim Gennaro.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: He also ran

          5  against, a very successful race against Senator

          6  Frank Padavan, where he got 45 percent of the vote.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Forty-one,

          8  which is impressive.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Forty-one, 45.

         10  Impressive.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That was just

         12  a mischievous question.

         13                 But I was wondering whether it was

         14  Avella, Weprin or Comrie.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         16  Perkins.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I don't have

         18  a question at this time. Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I have a

         20  question.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         22  Clarke.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Good

         24  afternoon, Mr. Alam.

         25                 I just wanted to raise a similar
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          2  question with you that I did with Mr. DeCASTRO,

          3  because I'm sure you come with your own unique

          4  perspective. And one of the challenges that we faced

          5  in this City is that this agency or this Commission

          6  has really not been able to put its full mandate

          7  into effect. Some say it's because it's underfunded,

          8  and you know, has not really had the appropriate

          9  staffing to get the job done.

         10                 I believe personally that the type of

         11  job that this Commission must do, while it requires

         12  resource, it also requires some creativity and some

         13  enthusiasm from its Commissioners.

         14                 And that having that short of having

         15  the type of dollars needed with the enthusiasm for

         16  the mandate and with the various resourcefulness of

         17  its commissioner, that some inroads can be made.

         18                 What would you say are some of the

         19  methodologies or techniques or what would you bring

         20  to the Commission, that would assist even in times

         21  of fiscal austerity for communities around this City

         22  who have not been able to actually manifest its

         23  franchise to its fullest, to enable them to do so.

         24                 MR. ALAM: I think we should organize

         25  community-based organizations to work
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          2  collaboratively on voter registration, and for

          3  example, New York Immigration Coalition was about to

          4  implement a project by receiving large grant from

          5  the Ford Foundation, and I think we should use the

          6  Foundation and different agencies who are giving the

          7  money for voter registration and working with the

          8  community groups.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Now, I am very

         10  concerned because I've watched very successful voter

         11  registration efforts take place over the past two to

         12  three decades, yet I find that we see voter apathy,

         13  meaning that people have the franchise but have not

         14  utilized it for a number of reasons.

         15                 I think that along with registering

         16  our voters, there has to be an ongoing voter

         17  education piece.

         18                 MR. ALAM: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Do you see

         20  that as part of the mandate of the Commission?

         21                 MR. ALAM: Yes, I think it is very

         22  important to have a voters education, and that's

         23  biggest problem now, because a lot of new voters,

         24  they don't understand how important it is to vote,

         25  and that part we have to address.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

          3                 MR. ALAM: You're welcome.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any other

          5  questions, comments, inquiries?

          6                 All right, Mr. Alam, I want to say

          7  thank you for deciding to serve on the Voter

          8  Assistance Commission, and we know that you will be

          9  a positive and energetic addition to the Commission,

         10  and it's my pleasure to be part of the Committee

         11  that will be voting it through. So thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 And at this time, we have one issue

         14  that came up during your investigative finding

         15  regarding motorvehicle, regarding the registration

         16  of the motor vehicle, and we hope that you will

         17  quickly resolve that issue so that you can suffer

         18  along with the rest of us with the New York City --

         19                 MR. ALAM: Okay, I'll do that. Thank

         20  you. Thank you so much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right, thank

         22  you.

         23                 Oh, yes. Before we move to the vote,

         24  the Counsel for the Committee, Mr. Ed O'Malley, will

         25  be handing out the proposed rules changes dealing
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          2  with the amending rules of the Council.

          3                 I'll just read the first part.

          4  Section 1, rules 2.0, 3.0 and 8.30, rules of the

          5  Council amended to read as follows:

          6                 Section 2.0 regarding the Speaker,

          7  President Pro-Tem and other officers.

          8                 "The Council shall elect from among

          9  its members a Speaker, a President Pro-Tem, and such

         10  other officers as it deems appropriate. During

         11  absences the Speaker may designate in writing any

         12  member to perform the duties of the Speaker for that

         13  legislative day, Section 3, who presides a public

         14  advocate or in absence of said officer, the

         15  President Pro-Tem, or in absence of said officer,

         16  the designee of the Speaker shall preside over, be

         17  the presiding officer" -- wait, I'm not reading it

         18  right?

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Yes, you are.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I am? Okay. I

         21  thought we skipped that. Okay,"...shall be the

         22  presiding officer of the Council and may at his or

         23  her discretion designate an Acting President

         24  Pro-Tem, who shall chair all stated Charter and

         25  special meetings.
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          2                 The Speaker shall call the Council to

          3  order and Acting President Pro-Tem, except in the

          4  absence of a quorum, shall proceed to business in

          5  the manner proscribed by these schools.

          6                 In 8.30, order calling at a roll, the

          7  roll call of this Council shall be in alphabetical

          8  order, then the Minority Leader, Majority Leader and

          9  the Speaker", period.

         10                 If you notice, we had to take out the

         11  -- this is, as you know, the ballot took away the

         12  power of the Public Advocate to be the President

         13  Pro-Tem, this is just cleaning up the language,

         14  allowing the Speaker to designate whoever he feels

         15  to be the President Pro-Tem of the Council meetings,

         16  who he has already indicated that he will leave the

         17  Public Advocate in that position, since she has been

         18  serving it very well.

         19                 The second part is, Rules 1, 2, 9.10,

         20  this is primarily rules of the Council, that you can

         21  read over if you have any specific questions, but

         22  the legislative document division of the Council,

         23  which is run very admirably by Mr. Cherry, has

         24  actually already been doing these items, they just

         25  had not been codified properly, and this is to
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          2  codify the things that they are already doing, it

          3  was technically in the bylaws of the Council, as the

          4  Clerk of this City Council, but it's actually the

          5  legislative document office, which has been

          6  actually, the legislative document division, which

          7  has actually been doing the minutes, the public

          8  access certification, the records, the rules in

          9  Charter, the Stated, special meetings, the

         10  transmittal, the clerk, home rule request, admission

         11  to floor, the presence of a quorum, absent members,

         12  local laws disapproved, motion to amend, and

         13  reconsideration of a question. So, we're just giving

         14  it to you for perusal. We're not voting on this

         15  today.

         16                 We could vote on it today? We could

         17  vote on it today. We have enough people to do it. I

         18  mean, it's pretty much proforma. Like I said, it's

         19  the stuff that they are already doing, and it's a

         20  technical legislative, and it's to codify the

         21  records, and update the records.

         22                 So, at this time, maybe we'll vote on

         23  this first?

         24                 Can I get -- no, I don't need a

         25  motion.
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          2                 I would like to couple all of the

          3  amendments to the resolution together, to amend

          4  various rules of the Council, the ones that I read

          5  earlier regarding the -- can we get a vote on the

          6  resolution amending the various rules of the Council

          7  read earlier? Well, we're going to break them out

          8  separately.

          9                 Can we get a vote on the rules

         10  changes first?

         11                 Are we ready?

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all. Aye

         14  on both.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

         17  all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of nine in

          8  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          9  abstentions, the item is adopted and the vote will

         10  remain open.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And now we'll

         12  have to submit for a vote the names of Sybil

         13  Silberstein, to the New York City Youth Board;

         14  Alanzo I. DeCastro, to the New York City Voter

         15  Assistance Commission; and Morshed

         16  Alam to the New York City Voter Assistance

         17  Commission. Can we take the roll, please?

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

         22  all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We're doing two

          8  candidates for Voter Assistance and the one

          9  candidate for the Youth Board.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: With regard

         19  to?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Two candidates

         21  for Voter Assistance and one for the Youth Board.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: For Voter

         23  Assistance Commission I'm going to vote aye. For

         24  Reverend Diane Lacey-Winley -- no, we're not doing

         25  that yet?

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No, we didn't get

          3  there yet.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Thank

          5  you very much. Aye on both.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on both.

          7  Okay, that's an aye.

          8                 Now we'll do the vote for Reverend

          9  Diane Lacey-Winley for Health and Hospitals Corp,

         10  and Dr. John Maese for Health and Hospitals

         11  Corporation.

         12                 Can we call the roll, please?

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on both.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I want to

         17  abstain on Dr. Maese and vote aye on Dr. Reverend

         18  Lacey-Winley. Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

          5  may I explain my vote? Sir?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes. I'm sorry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would be

          8  troubled to have a Council nominee for HHC come

          9  before us and tell us they support privatization,

         10  but I'm truly baffled that someone with the interest

         11  in being an HHC member would not have an opinion.

         12  Kind of like not having an opinion on the death

         13  penalty or choice. It really does trouble me.

         14                 Nonetheless, and I have said this at

         15  prior Rules meetings, I do believe that the

         16  delegations ought to have the absence of someone who

         17  has a serious moral or ethical problem, which Dr.

         18  Maese does not have, should have the right to select

         19  their nominee. And, so, given that faith in our

         20  colleagues from Staten Island, I'm going to vote aye

         21  on both.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: To explain my

         24  vote?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes. Just to

          3  echo what Councilman Fidler said, and my

          4  conversation with Councilman Oddo just before, I

          5  said that it's not that this gentleman may be

          6  against privatization, it's that we don't even know

          7  the opinion. And it's such an important topic that I

          8  think that it's important for HHC's members of the

          9  Board to really think about it.

         10                 But, again, I don't believe we're

         11  ever going to agree on everything on this Committee,

         12  and we do have the utmost respect for our Minority

         13  Leader, and I vote aye on both.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on both.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I could be

         18  excused to explain my vote?

         19                 I, too, want to echo the comments

         20  made by Council Member Fidler and Council Member

         21  Katz. In an odd way I almost would have felt more

         22  comfortable about this appointment if the

         23  appointment had, if the doctor had said he had a

         24  position, even if it was one that I disagreed with,

         25  to tell you the truth, because it just seems odd we
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          2  could have gone through that process, and someone

          3  could have been in this profession and gone through

          4  that process in the City as publicized as it was and

          5  not had an opinion.

          6                 So, that said, I am going to vote aye

          7  on the appointment of Reverend Lacey to HHC; and

          8  abstain on the appointment of Dr. Maese to the HHC.

          9                 I just want to say, I'm abstaining as

         10  opposed to voting no in deference to my colleague

         11  Council Member Oddo, who although we may in fact

         12  have different opinions on privatization, he has

         13  been an outstanding member of the Health Committee

         14  and has worked very closely with me with the best

         15  interests of the public health of all of New York

         16  City's residents in mind, so I abstain, because I

         17  believe working closely with the Minority Leader, we

         18  will be able to make sure that Dr. Maese does

         19  represent the need for the Staten Island residents

         20  on the board and that Jimmy will bring them along if

         21  there's any problems, so-to-speak.

         22                 So that said, I vote aye on one and

         23  abstain on the other.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I vote aye on
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          2  both, and I would just like to say to my colleagues

          3  that I will take full and complete responsibility

          4  for not ensuring that there was an answer that was

          5  distinct and clear, and I want to thank Council

          6  Member Quinn and particularly for her comments. And

          7  although we might disagree on certain issues, I

          8  certainly take to heart the comments by her, and

          9  Council Members Katz and Fidler and others in

         10  wanting an answer one way or another.

         11                 But I think Dr. Maese is qualified,

         12  and I appreciate each of your cooperation.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of ten in

         15  the affirmative, and zero in the negative and no

         16  abstentions, with exception of preconsidered M, in

         17  relation to Dr. Maese, which is adopted by a vote of

         18  eight in the affirmative, zero negatives and two

         19  abstentions, all items are adopted.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, I want to

         21  thank the Committee for their thorough review of the

         22  candidates that came before us. I want to

         23  congratulate those candidates. And also congratulate

         24  the staff who has all done their usual exemplary job

         25  in processing the candidates before. So, thank you.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 And I also want to just point out

          4  that I really appreciate the fact that my Committee

          5  is being very thorough and is not taking anyone

          6  lightly, because these are important appointments to

          7  very important groups within the City that need to

          8  be protected.

          9                 Don't forget to turn back in your

         10  confidential files, so that Stu and Charles can

         11  collect them. And I also want to thank Ms. Wechsler

         12  for being here who is always monitoring our

         13  Committee meetings.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 We are adjourned, but we will be

         16  holding the vote open. We have two members who are

         17  at meetings and will be here later to vote.

         18                 Thank you very much, all.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 13th day of November 2002.
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         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of
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         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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